ISSN 2221-6421 (Print), ISSN 2223-2567 (Online) Coden: PJSIC6 60(3) 125-182 (2017)

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series B: Biological Sciences Vol. 60, No.3, November-December, 2017



(for on-line access please visit web-site http://www.pjsir.org)

Published by Scientific Information Centre Pakistan Council of Scientific and Industrial Research Karachi, Pakistan

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series B: Biological Sciences

EDITORIAL BOARD

Dr. Shahzad Alam Chief Editor

Shagufta Yasmin Iqbal Executive Editor

MEMBERS

Prof. Z. Adamek	Prof. M. J. Jaskani	Dr. S. K. Rastogi
Faculty of Agriculture	Plant Tissue Culture Cell	Dept. of Chem. & Biochemistry
Univ. South Bohemia,	Univ. of Agric., Faisalabad, Pakistan	Texas State University, USA
Czech Republic	Dr. A. Khanum	Dr. J. S. Sangha
Dr. T. A. Ajith	Dept. Biochemistry	Dalhousie University Truro,
Amala Institute of Medical Science	Pir Mehr Ali Shah Agric. University	NS B2N 5E3, Canada
Kerala, India	Rawalpindi, Pakistan	Dr. H. Shimoda
Dr. S. A. Barlas	Dr. S. Mathews	Oryza Oil & Fat Chemical Co. Ltd.,
Environ. Protection Division	Pharmacology, The University of	Aichi, Japan
Penticton, BC V0H 1Z4,	Sydney, NSW, Australia	Prof. Dr. T. Toyosaki
Canada	Prof. E. Miraldi	Dept. of Foods and Nutrition
Dr. C. M. A. Caipang	Pharmaceutical Biology Section	Fukuoka, Japan
Bio Vivo Technologies As, Norway	Universiity of Siena, Siena, Italy	Dr. V. Zambare
Dr. D. Das	Dr. G. Müller	Centre for Bioprocessing
C. B. Fleet Company, Inc., VA,	Sanofi-Aventis Pharma	Research and Development,
USA	Frankfurt, Germany	South Dakota, USA

Editors: Shahida Begum Sajid Ali Seema Iqbal

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research started in 1958, has been bifurcated in 2011 into:

Series A: Physical Sciences [ISSN 2221-6413 (Print); ISSN 2223-2559 (online)] (appearing as issues of January-February, May-June and September-October) and Series B: Biological Sciences [ISSN 2221-6421 (Print); ISSN 2223-2567 (online)] (appearing as issues of March-April, July-August and November-December).

Each Series will appear three times in a year.

This Journal is indexed/abstracted in Biological Abstracts and Biological Abstracts Reports, Chemical Abstracts, Geo Abstracts, CAB International, BioSciences Information Service, Zoological Record, BIOSIS, NISC, NSDP, Current Contents, CCAB, Rapra Polymer Database, Reviews and Meetings and their CD-ROM counterparts etc.

Subscription rates (including handling and Air Mail postage): Local: Rs. 2500 per volume, single issue Rs. 425; Foreign: US\$ 450 per volume, single issue US\$ 75.

Electronic format of this journal is available with: ProQuest Information and Learning, 789 E. Eisenhower Parkway, P.O. Box 1346, Ann Arbor, MI 48106-1346, U.S.A.; Fax.No.+1.734.997.4268; http://www.proquest.com.

Photocopies of back issues can be obtained through submission of complete reference to the Executive Editor against the payment of Rs. 25 per page per copy (by Registered Mail) and Rs. 115 per copy (by Courier Service), within Pakistan; US\$ 10 per page per copy (by Registered Mail) and US\$25 per page per copy (by Courier Service), for all other countries.

Copyrights of this Journal are reserved; however, limited permission is granted to researchers for making references, and libraries/agencies for abstracting and indexing purposes according to the international practice.

Printed and Published by: PCSIR Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan.

Editorial Address

Executive Editor

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research, PCSIR Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan Tel: 92-21-99261914-99261916, 99261949-99261917; Fax: 92-21-99261913; Web: http://www.pjsir.org, E-mail: info@pjsir.org

AIMS & SCOPE

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research (PJSIR) was started in 1958 to disseminate research results based on utilization of locally available raw materials leading to production of goods to cater to the national requirements and to promote S&T in the country. Over the past 60 years, the journal conveys high quality original research results in both basic and applied research in Pakistan. A great number of major achievements in Pakistan were first disseminated to the outside world through PJSIR.

It is a peer reviewed journal and published in both print and electronic form. Original research articles, review articles and short communications from varied key scientific disciplines are accepted however, papers of Pure Mathematics, Computer Sciences, Engineering and Medical Sciences are not entertained.

From 54th Volume in 2011, it has been bifurcated into Series A: Physical Sciences & Series B: Biological Sciences. Each series appears three times in a year as follows:

Physical Sciences in January-February, May-June and September-October issues. It includes research related to Natural Sciences, Organic Chemistry, Inorganic Chemistry, Industrial Chemistry, Physical Chemistry, Environmental Sciences, Geology, Physics, Polymer Sciences and Technology.

Biological Sciences in March-April, July-August and November-December issues. Papers included in this series are from Agriculture, Agronomy, Botany, Biochemistry, Biotechnology, Food Sciences, Genetic Engineering, Pharmaceutical Sciences, Microbiology, Marine Sciences, Soil Sciences, Tissue Culture, Zoology and Technology.

Due to many global issues, we are encouraging contributions from scientists and researchers from all across the globe with the sole purpose of serving scientific community worldwide on the whole and particularly for our region and third world countries.

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series B: Biological Sciences Vol. 60, No. 3, November-December, 2017

Contents

Response of Potato Cultivars to Organic and Inorganic Fertilizers Under the Agroclimatic Conditions of Skardu (Gilgit-Baltistan)	
Syed Zahid Hussain, Ehsan Elahi, Nasrullah, Saeed Ahmed, Nazeer Ahmed and Zelle Huma	125
Mutagenic Effects on the Growth, Reproductive and Yield Parameters of <i>Praecitrullus fistulosus</i>	
Mehreen Khan, Muhammad Rafiq, Syed Habib Ahmed Naqvi,	
Naseem Khatoon and Muhammad Umar Dahot	132
Effect of Physical, Chemical and Physiochemical Treatments of Surface Sterilisation	
on Medicinal Plants Salvadora persica and Solanum surattense for In-vitro Propagation	141
Beena Naqvi, Saleema Mehboob Ali, Kiran Makhani and Kamran Yousuf	141
Application of Spectroscopic Techniques for Antioxidant Property Analysis	
of Various Food Supplements and Ganoderma lucidum Coffee	
Zeynep Aygun	145
Biochemical Evaluation of Trigonella foenum graecum (Fenugreek)	
with Special Reference to Phenolic Acids	
Imran Pasha, Muhammad Asim Shabbir, Muhammad Adnan Haider, Bahzad Afzal,	
Muhammad Farhan Jahangir Chughtai, Shabbir Ahmad and Muhammad Sajid Manzoor	154
Vehicular Traffic Air Pollution as Expressed by Leaves of <i>Senna occidentalis</i> (L.)	
Link from Three Busy Roads in Nigeria	1(2
Jonathan Eromosele Otoide and Patrick Olugbenga Tedela	162
Spider Diversity in Some Common Oilseed Crops in Central Punjab, Pakistan	
Sobia Riaz, Saima Kausar, Muhammad Mohsin, Aamir Mahmood Memon,	
Iram Maqsood and Muhammad Nadeem Abbas	168
Review	
Role of Herbal Immunomodulators in Control of Coccidiosis Disease	
Muhammad Jamil, Muhammad Mansoor, Asghar Ali, Haroon Shahzad,	
Rizwan-ul-Haq, Aftab Ahmad Awan and Jaweria Gul	176
Contents of Volume 60, Ser. B: Biol. Sci. (No.1-3)	i
Author Index of Volume 60, Ser. B: Biol. Sci. (No.1-3)	iv
Subject Index of Volume 60, Ser. B: Biol. Sci. (No.1-3)	vi
Subject index of volume ov, Set. D. Diol. Set. (10.1-5)	VI

Response of Potato Cultivars to Organic and Inorganic Fertilizers Under the Agroclimatic Conditions of Skardu (Gilgit-Baltistan)

Syed Zahid Hussain^a*, Ehsan Elahi^b, Nasrullah^c, Saeed Ahmed^d, Nazeer Ahmed^e and Zelle Huma^f

^aAgha Khan Rural Support Programme, Skardu, (AKRSP), Pakistan
^bDepartment of Horticulture, The University of Agriculture Peshawar, Pakistan
^cDepartment of Agriculture, Ghanche Agriculture Department, Gilgit-Baltistan, Pakistan
^dCentre of Agriculture Sciences, State University of Londrina, Londrina, Parana, (PR), Brazil
^eKey Laboratory of Applied Entomology, College of Plant Protection, Northwest A&F University, Yangling, China
^fDepartment of Plant Protection, University of Agriculture, Peshawar, Pakistan

(received February 17, 2016; revised October 27, 2016; accepted October 31, 2016)

Abstract. Field research was conducted during summer season in 2010, in order to determine the effective combination between potato varieties i.e., the best yielding potato cultivar under organic or inorganic fertilizer in Skardu valley, Gilgit-Baltistan, Pakistan. A randomized complete block design (RCBD) was used for the trial and both the experimental factors (cultivar and fertilizer type) significantly affected the crops growth and yield variables. Among the nine different organic and inorganic fertilizer treatments, the maximum mean values of sprouting rate 43.1%, plant height 49.5 cm, number of tubers/plant (8.5), weight of tubers/plant (385.9 g), tuber diameter 3.8 cm and yield (25.7 t/ha) were obtained in the crops which received 10 tonnes FYM/ha + 150 kg N/ha. Among the cultivars tested, Desiree showed the maximum mean values of sprouting rate 30.4%, plant height 36.7 cm, number of tubers/plant 7.3, weight of tubers/plant 350.3 g, tuber diameter 3.7 cm and yield 23.4 t/ha. Overall results revealed that the treatment matched to 10 t/ha FYM + 150 kg/ha N (T7) led to the highest tuber yield and Desiree showed better performances than other cultivars.

Keywords: potato cultivars, fertilizer levels, yield, Skardu

Mutagenic Effects on the Growth, Reproductive and Yield Parameters of *Praecitrullus fistulosus*

Mehreen Khan, Muhammad Rafiq*, Syed Habib Ahmed Naqvi, Naseem Khatoon and Muhammad Umar Dahot

Institute of Biotechnology and Genetic Engineering, University of Sindh, Jamshoro, Pakistan

(received June 2, 2016; revised December 11, 2016; accepted December 13, 2016)

Abstract. The aim of this study was to modify the growth, reproductive and yield parameters of Praecitrullus fistulosus by mutagenesis. The seeds of the plant were treated with chemical mutagens including ethidium bromide and colchicine in concentration of (0.05 and 0.10%) and (0.01 and 0.02%), respectively. Seeds were also treated with UV rays at periods of 1 and 2 h and X-rays for 75 KeV at periods of 5 and 10 sec. The growth features were observed at an interval of one week till the 11th week of their growth period. The data showed that seed germination value and lethality (%) of plants were 80 and 75%, respectively and highest in control plants. The time of seed germination (1.6 days) was least in plants treated with X-rays (10 sec). The mutation frequency (80%) was found to be highest in X-rays (10 sec) and colchicine 0.02%. The vegetative growth parameters such as stem length (77 cm), length of leaves (6.6 cm), average number of leaves (36) and leaf surface area (49.6 cm²) was highest against ethidium bromide 0.01%, colchicine 0.02%, ethidium bromide 0.10% and UV rays 1 h, respectively. While the average diameter of stem of control plants was highest (49.6 cm²). The minimum flowering time (31 days) and fruiting time (42.5 days) were observed in ethidium bromide 0.05% and colchicine 0.01% treated plants. The highest number of fruits (4) was observed in colchicine 0.01% treated plants. In conclusion, seeds of P. fistulosus treated with ethidium bromide and colchicine caused positive impact on growth, reproduction and yield attributes as compared to UV and X-rays treatments.

Keywords: mutagenic effects, physical mutagens, chemical mutagens, Praecitrullus fistulosus

Effect of Physical, Chemical and Physiochemical Treatments of Surface Sterilisation on Medicinal Plants *Salvadora persica* and *Solanum surattense* for *In-vitro* Propagation

Beena Naqvia*, Saleema Mehboob Ali^b, Kiran Makhani^b and Kamran Yousuf^b

^aPCSIR Laboratories Complex, Shahrah-e-Dr.Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan ^bDepartment of Biotechnology, University of Karachi, Karachi-75270, Pakistan

(received June 23, 2016; revised November 25, 2016; accepted December 15, 2016)

Abstract. Effect of various surface sterilisation treatments on medicinal plants *Salvadora persica* and *Solanum surattense* has been studied for *in-vitro* propagation. Surface sterilisation treatment was applied by physical, chemical and physiochemical means. Chemical sterilisation was done with sodium hypochlorite, physically with sonication and physiochemically with combination of both. Sodium hypochlorite alone was found to be effective for smooth textured plant i.e., *Salvadora persica*, whereas for rough textured plant *Solanum surattense* a combination of both physiochemical means yielded good results. However, sonication alone did not render the effective way of surface sterilisation. Moreover, for *Salvadora persica*, 10% sodium hypochlorite was effective in eliminating bacterial or fungal growth whereas in *Solanum surattense*, a concentration of 15% sodium hypochlorite proved to be effective. In general, best results were achieved in the combined treatment by physiochemical means.

Keywords: physiochemical treatment, surface sterilisation, in-vitro propagation

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. B: biol. sci. 2017 60(3) 145-153

Application of Spectroscopic Techniques for Antioxidant Property Analysis of Various Food Supplements and *Ganoderma lucidum* Coffee

Zeynep Aygun

Bitlis Eren University, Vocational School of Technical Sciences, Bitlis, Turkey

(received August 29, 2016; revised January 10, 2017; accepted February 10, 2017)

Abstract. In the present study, different methods were used to investigate the magnetic and structural properties of some food supplements and a kind of *Ganoderma lucidum* coffee. In order to understand the antioxidant capability of the samples and to detect paramagnetic centres, EPR (Electron Paramagnetic Resonance) experiment was carried out at room temperature. To examine the structural features and crystalline property of the samples, XRD (X-ray diffraction) method was used. SEM (Scanning Electron Microscopy) technique was preferred to analyse the surface morphology. Also, EDS (Energy Dispersive Spectroscopy) was performed to get information about the elemental composition of the samples. Antioxidant potential of these samples were examined in detail which is important to support our body functions.

Keywords: antioxidant property, coffee, food supplements, Ganoderma lucidum

Biochemical Evaluation of *Trigonella foenum graecum* (Fenugreek) With Special Reference to Phenolic Acids

Imran Pasha, Muhammad Asim Shabbir, Muhammad Adnan Haider, Bahzad Afzal, Muhammad Farhan Jahangir Chughtai*, Shabbir Ahmad and Muhammad Sajid Manzoor

National Institute of Food Science & Technology, Faculty of Food, Nutrition & Home Sciences, University of Agriculture, Faisalabad, Pakistan

(received August 15, 2016; revised November 9, 2016; accepted December 28, 2016)

Abstract. In current study nutritional constituents of fenugreek seeds *Trigonella foenum graecum* and antioxidant potential was determined. Rheological aspects of fenugreek supplemented flour were evaluated. Total phenolic contents (TPC) were quantified by using spectrophotometer. TPC content was higher in ethanol extract as compared to methanol extract, accounted for 9.11mg GAE/g, and 7.82mg GAE/g, respectively. High pressure liquid chromatography was used to analyze the individual phenolic acids. Chlorogenic acid was found in higher quantity accounted for 167. 9 µg/g and sinapic acid with lowest amount 8.6 µg/g. Composite flours with treatments T₁, T₂, T₃ and T₄ of fenugreek seed powder with wheat flour were prepared and their rheological properties revealed the T₄ with best and healthy results. Physicochemical and sensory analysis of cookies depicted that T₁ was best as compared to rest of the treatments.

Keywords: fenugreek, physicochemical analysis, phenolic acids, antioxidant, rheology, cookies.

Vehicular Traffic Air Pollution as Expressed by Leaves of Senna occidentalis (L.) Link from Three Busy Roads in Nigeria

Jonathan Eromosele Otoide* and Patrick Olugbenga Tedela

Department of Plant Science and Biotechnology, Faculty of Science, Ekiti State University, Ado-Ekiti, Ekiti State, Nigeria

(received September 3, 2016; revised January 6, 2017; accepted February 22, 2017)

Abstract. Matured leaves of Senna occidentalis (L.) were collected along the sides of busy roads of Oluku, Agbor and Sapele in Benin city, Nigeria where they were constantly exposed to air pollution from vehicular traffic (polluted populations). Others were collected from forest areas of Ebvomodu, Ebvoneka and Eyaen villages, each located within the distances of 50-60 km away from Benin city, where there was no source of vehicular air pollution(non-polluted populations). Peelings of the adaxial (upper) and the abaxial (lower) leaf epidermis were stained and microscopic examination and line drawings results showed that the leaves of the polluted populations suffered epidermal cell aberrations which ranged from plugged stomata, epidermal cell erosion and occasional leaf perforations caused by the corrosive activity of some of the pollutants as they undergo chemical reactions. These forms of damages were not observed in the non-polluted populations which were healthy with opened stomatal pores. At the upper (adaxial) epidermis, the mean lengths (μ m) of stomatal pores of leaves of non-polluted populations of collections were 0.64 ± 0.41, 0.76 ± 0.84 and 0.74 ± 0.92 , respectively and at the lower (abaxial) epidermis, the mean lengths were 0.61 \pm 0.81, 1.40 \pm 0.95 and 0.71 \pm 0.81 from Ebvomodu, Ebvoneka and Eyaen, respectively. In the same vein, the mean width (μm) of pores of stomata of the non-polluted leaves collected from Ebvomedu, Ebvoneka and Eyaen were 1.14 ± 0.16 , 0.32 ± 0.63 and 0.32 ± 0.11 , respectively, at the upper (adaxial) epidermis. At the lower (abaxial) epidermis, the mean width (μ m) of pores were 0.22 ± 0.25, 0.30 ± 0.51 and 0.39 ± 0.16 for collections from Ebvomodu, Ebvoneka and Evaen, respectively. The stomatal pores of leaves of the polluted populations on the other hand were impossible to be measured because they were plugged by particulate air pollutants from the busy roads. It was opined that the leaves of the polluted populations would suffer eco-physiological stress by virtue of their plugged stomatal pores.

Keywords: Senna occidentalis (L.), vehicular traffic, air pollution, physiological stress, leaves

Pak. j. sci. ind. res. Ser. B: biol. sci. 2017 60(3) 168-175

Spider Diversity in Some Common Oilseed Crops in Central Punjab, Pakistan

Sobia Riaz^a*, Saima Kausar^a, Muhammad Mohsin^b, Aamir Mahmood Memon^b, Iram Maqsood^c and Muhammad Nadeem Abbas^a

^aDepartment of Zoology and Fisheries, University of Agriculture, Faisalabad, Pakistan ^bCollege of Fisheries, Ocean University of China, Qingdao 266003, China ^cNortheast Agriculture University, Herbin, China

(received September 14, 2015; revised November 14, 2016; accepted December 13, 2016)

Abstract. Three commonly cultivated oilseed crops *viz.*, soybean, sunflower and Indian mustard were sampled to compare density and diversity of spider at different developmental stages. This study was conducted at Ayub Agriculture Research Institute, Faisalabad, Pakistan. A total of 1210 spider individuals, 68 species and 5 families were sampled throughout the study period. The families showed different levels of association with the crops, like Lycosidae and Clubionidae were found commonly spread and highly abundant, whereas Philodromidae was only restricted to sunflower and locally rare. The *Evippa sohani*, *Pardosa fletcheri*, *Evippa shivajii* and *Pardosa oakleyi* were recorded most dominant and commonly spread spider species. Indian mustard constituted highest diversity of spider species followed by soybean and sunflower. Spider species diversity on the Indian mustard was significantly different from the sunflower. These predator species can play a major role to suppress devastating agricultural pests of oilseed crops, thereby enhance the crop yield.

Keywords: Araneae, agro-ecosystem, oil seed, ecology, agrochemicals, spider diversity

Review

Role of Herbal Immunomodulators in Control of Coccidiosis Disease

^aMuhammad Jamil^a, Muhammad Mansoor^{a*}, Asghar Ali^b, Haroon Shahzad^a, Rizwan-ul-Haq^c, Aftab Ahmad Awan^a and Jaweria Gul^d

^aArid Zone Research Centre (PARC), Dera Ismail Khan, KPK, Pakistan
^bDepartment of Agronomy, Faculty of Agriculture, Gomal University, Dera Ismail Khan, Pakistan
^cDepartment of Parasitology, University of Agriculture, Faisalabad-38040, Pakistan
^dDepartment of Biotechnology, Shaheed Benazir Bhutto University, Sheringal, Dir, Pakistan

(received February 12, 2016; revised December 19, 2016; acceped December 28, 2016)

Abstract. Herbal plants and their derivatives have been utilized since antiquity in the control and management of poultry coccidiosis. The best known herbal plants in use against coccidiosis are corn, wheat bran, rice bran, polysaccharides, soya bean, barley, oat, extracts of grape seed, *Dictamnus dasycarpus* Turcz, *Pulsatilla koreana, Sinomenium acutum, Ulmus macrocarpa, Dichroafe brifuga* and other botanical antioxidants which contain many active compounds. These compounds have been found to possess antiprotozoal, antiparasitic, anti-inflammatory and antioxidant properties. Currently demand and utilization of these aforesaid herbs has increased because these have been proved successful and effective in control of coccidiosis, eco-friendly and economical. The effective potential of these herbals and derivatives to have been reviewed overcome coccidiosis effectively in a better way than other synthetic products against which resistance has been developed.

Keywords: coccidiosis, immunomodulators, herbal plants, poultry

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series B: Biological Sciences Volume 60

Contents

Series B: Biological Sciences Vol. 60, No.1, March - April, 2017

Effect of Different Concentrations of Sucrose and Honey on the Physiochemical	
and Sensory Properties of Strawberry Leather	
Muhammad Kaleem, Ihsan Mabood Qazi, Arsalan Khan, Muhammad Ali Khan,	
Ibrar Hussain, Muhammad Ayub, Abid Shah Shinwari, Falak Naz Shah and Ata Ur Rehman	1
Development and Quality Evaluation of Banana Mushroom Blended Jam	
Mati Ullah Khan, Ihsan Mabood Qazi, Ishfaq Ahmed, Shermat Ullah,	
Arsalan Khan and Suraiya Jamal	11
Barley and Oat Meal Supplemented Chapaties and its Impact on Serum	
Biochemical Profile in Normal Individuals	
Rebia Ejaz, Mian Kamran Sharif, Imran Pasha, Sabiha Abbas, Abdul Wadood and	
Ayesha Amin	19
Development of Buckwheat Cookies Supplemented with Wheat Flour	
Nisar Hussain, Javid Ullah, Ehsan Elahi, Sajjad Ahmad, Muhammad Zakaria, Murtaza,	
Saeed Ahmed, Nazeer Ahmed and Zelle Huma	27
A Study on Molecular Diagnosis of Theileria Species Infection by PCR Amplification	
in Sheep and Goats in Multan, Pakistan	
Muhammad Riaz and Zahida Tasawar	
	36
Short Communication	
Photo-oxidation of Pasteurized Milk in Polyethylene Pouch Packs	
Muhammad Nadeem, Asif Anwar, Rahman Ullah, Shakeel Ahmad and Masroor Ellahi Babar	46
Review	
Control of Avian Coccidiosis: Present and Future Strategies for Natural	
Alternatives of Therapeutics	
Muhammad Jamil, Muhammad Mansoor, Arsalan Khan, Rizwan ul Haq and	
Fawad Anwar	49

Vol. 60, No.2, July - August, 2017

Grass Diversity in the Historical Kalash Valley, District Chitral, Hindukush Range, Pakistan	
Fazal Hadi and Muhammad Ibrar	63
Nutrient Priming in Different Maize Cultivars and Evaluation of Vigour Improvement	
Under Controlled Conditions	
Adnan Umair, Muhammad Abid, Ijaz Ali, Kashif Bashir, Waqas Naseem and Hafiz Abdul Rauf	69
<i>Os</i> DOF18, A DOF Transcription Factor from Rice Confers Abiotic Stress Tolerance in <i>Escherichia coli</i>	
Farah Deeba, Tasawar Sultana, Ghazala Kaukab Raja and Syed Muhammad Saqlan Naqvi	74
DPPH Radical Scavenging Assay, Biological Activities, Nutritional Composition and Quality	
Parameters of <i>Momordica charantia</i> Seeds Grown in District Charsadda, KPK, Pakistan	
Fazia Ghaffar, Bushra Kainat, Hamid Ullah Shah and Inayat Ur Rahman	84
The Effect of Beta Cyclodextrin on the Removal of Cholesterol from Buffalo Milk	
Muhammad Nadeem, Zunnurain and Hafiza Anam Baig	91
Influence of Carrot Pulp Fortified with Different Concentrations of Apple Pulp on Blended Jam	
Shermat Ullah, Arsalan Khan, Muhammad Ayub, Ishfaq Ahmed, Baber Shamrez and Mati Ullah Khan	96
Accumulation of Heavy Metals by Living and Dead Bacteria as Biosorbents:	
Isolated from Waste Soil	
Iqra Batool, Saiqa Andleeb, Shaukat Ali, Kalsoom Akhtar and Nazish Mazhar Ali	106
Short Communications	
Comparison of Direct Seeded and Transplanted Rice in Response to Zinc Under	
Salt-Affected Soil	
Muhammad Arshad Ullah, Imdad Ali Mahmood, Badar-uz-Zaman, Syed Ishtiaq Haider,	
Muhammad Suhaib, Arshad Ali and Muhammad Jamil	116
A Comparison of Nutrient and Dietary Compositions of Cereals and Pulses Commonly	
Consumed in Pakistan	
Ammara Yasmeen, Tehseen Yaseen, Muhammad Faisal, Saima Nazir, Shumaila Usman,	110
Zahida Nasreen and Sakhawat Ali	119
Nutritional Analysis and Determination of Antioxidant Activity Using Free Radical	
Scavenging Assay of Potatoes (Solanum tuberosum) from Two Regions of Pakistan	
Muhammad Khalid Saeed, Ashi Nazir, Ijaz Ahmad, Naseem Zahra, Alim-un-Nisa,	
Sajila Hina and Imran Kalim	122

Vol. 60, No.3, November - December, 2017

Response of Potato Cultivars to Organic and Inorganic Fertilizers Under the Agroclimatic Conditions of Skardu (Gilgit-Baltistan)	
Syed Zahid Hussain, Ehsan Elahi, Nasrullah, Saeed Ahmed, Nazeer Ahmed and Zelle Huma	125
Mutagenic Effects on the Growth, Reproductive and Yield Parameters	
of <i>Praecitrullus fistulosus</i> Mehreen Khan, Muhammad Rafiq, Syed Habib Ahmed Naqvi,	
Naseem Khatoon and Muhammad Umar Dahot	132
	152
Effect of Physical, Chemical and Physiochemical Treatments of Surface Sterilisation	
on Medicinal Plants Salvadora persica and Solanum surattense for In-vitro Propagation	
Beena Naqvi, Saleema Mehboob Ali, Kiran Makhani and Kamran Yousuf	141
Application of Spectroscopic Techniques for Antioxidant Property Analysis	
of Various Food Supplements and Ganoderma lucidum Coffee	
Zeynep Aygun	145
Biochemical Evaluation of <i>Trigonella foenum graecum</i> (Fenugreek)	
with Special Reference to Phenolic Acids	
Imran Pasha, Muhammad Asim Shabbir, Muhammad Adnan Haider, Bahzad Afzal,	154
Muhammad Farhan Jahangir Chughtai, Shabbir Ahmad and Muhammad Sajid Manzoor	154
Vehicular Traffic Air Pollution as Expressed by Leaves of Senna occidentalis (L.)	
Link from Three Busy Roads in Nigeria	
Jonathan Eromosele Otoide and Patrick Olugbenga Tedela	162
Spider Diversity in Some Common Oilseed Crops in Central Punjab, Pakistan	
Sobia Riaz, Saima Kausar, Muhammad Mohsin, Aamir Mahmood Memon,	
Iram Maqsood and Muhammad Nadeem Abbas	168
	100
Review	
Role of Herbal Immunomodulators in Control of Coccidiosis Disease	
Muhammad Jamil, Muhammad Mansoor, Asghar Ali, Haroon Shahzad,	
Rizwan-ul-Haq, Aftab Ahmad Awan and Jaweria Gul	176
Contents of Volume 60, Ser. B: Biol. Sci. (No.1-3)	i
Author Index of Volume 60, Ser. B: Biol. Sci. (No.1-3)	iv
Subject Index of Volume 60, Ser. B: Biol. Sci. (No.1-3)	vi

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series B: Biological Sciences Volume 60

Author Index

Abbas, Muhammad Nadeem 60B(3)168 Abbas, Sabiha 60B(1)19 Abid, Muhammad 60B(2)69 Afzal, Bahzad 60B(3)154 Ahmad, Ijaz 60B(2)122 Ahmad, Sajjad 60B(1)27 Ahmad, Shabbir 60B(3)154 Ahmad, Shakeel 60B(1)46 Ahmed, Ishfaq 60B(1)11; 60B(2)96 Ahmed, Nazeer 60B(1)27; 60B(3)125 Ahmed, Saeed 60B(1)27; 60B(3)125 Akhtar, Kalsoom 60B(2)106 Ali, Arshad 60B(2)116 Ali, Asghar 60B(3)176 Ali, Ijaz 60B(2)69 Ali, Nazish Mazhar 60B(2)106 Ali, Sakhawat 60B(2)119 Ali, Saleema Mehboob 60B(3)141 Ali, Shaukat 60B(2)106 Amin, Ayesha 60B(1)19 Andleeb, Saiqa 60B(2)106 Anwar, Asif 60B(1)46 Anwar, Fawad 60B(1)49 Ata Ur Rehman 60B(1)1 Awan, Aftab Ahmad 60B(3)176 Aygun, Zeynep 60B(3)145 Ayub, Muhammad 60B(1)1; 60B(2)96 Babar, Masroor Ellahi 60B(1)46 Badar-uz-Zaman, 60B(2)116 Baig, Hafiza Anam 60B(2)91 Bashir, Kashif 60B(2)69 Batool, Iqra 60B(2)106 Chughtai, Muhammad Farhan Jahangir 60B(3)154 Dahot, Muhammad Umar 60B(3)132 Deeba, Farah 60B(2)74 Ejaz, Rebia 60B(1)19 Elahi, Ehsan 60B(1)27; 60B(3)125 Faisal, Muhammad 60B(2)119 Ghaffar, Fazia 60B(2)84 Gul, Jaweria 60B(3)176 Hadi, Fazal 60B(2)63 Haider, Muhammad Adnan 60B(3)154 Haider, Syed Ishtiaq 60B(2)116 Haq, Rizwan ul 60B(1)49; 60B(3)176 Hina, Sajila 60B(2)122 Huma, Zelle 60B(1)27; 60B(3)125 Hussain, Ibrar 60B(1)1 Hussain, Nisar 60B(1)27 Hussain, Syed Zahid 60B(3)125 Ibrar, Muhammad 60B(2)63 Jamal, Suraiya 60B(1)11 Jamil, Muhammad 60B(1)49; 60B(2)116; 60B(3)176 Kainat, Bushra 60B(2)84 Kaleem, Muhammad 60B(1)1 Kalim, Imran 60B(2)122 Kausar, Saima 60B(3)168 Khan, Arslan 60B(1)1; 60B(1)11; 60B(2)49; 60B(1)96 Khan, Mati Ullah 60B(1)11; 60B(2)96 Khan, Mehreen 60B(3)132 Khan, Muhammad Ali 60B(1)1 Khatoon, Naseem 60B(3)132 Mahmood, Imdad Ali 60B(2)116 Makhani, Kiran 60B(3)141 Mansoor, Muhammad 60B(1)49; 60B(3)176 Manzoor, Muhammad Sajid 60B(3)154 Maqsood, Iram 60B(3)168

Memon, Aamir Mahmood 60B(3)168 Mohsin, Muhammad 60B(3)168 Murtaza 60B(1)27 Nadeem, Muhammad 60B(1)46; 60B(2)91 Naqvi, Beena 60B(3)141 Naqvi, Syed Habib Ahmed 60B(3)132 Naqvi, Syed Muhammad Saqlan 60B(2)74 Naseem, Waqas 60B(2)69 Nasreen, Zahida 60B(2)119 Nasrullah **60B**(3)125 Nazir, Ashi 60B(2)122 Nazir, Saima 60B(2)119 Nisa, Alim-un- 60B(2)122 Otoide, Jonathan Eromosele 60B(3)162 Pasha, Imran 60B(1)19; 60B(3)154 Qazi, Ihsan Mabood 60B(1)1; 60B(1)11 Rafiq, Muhammad **60B**(3)132 Rahman, Inayat Ur 60B(2)84 Raja, Ghazala Kaukab 60B(2)74 Rauf, Hafiz Abdul 60B(2)69 Riaz, Muhammad 60B(1)36 Riaz, Sobia 60B(3)168 Saeed, Muhammad Khalid 60B(2)122 Shabbir, Muhammad Asim 60B(3)154

Shah, Falak Naz 60B(1)1 Shah, Hamid Ullah 60B(2)84 Shahzad, Haroon 60B(3)176 Shamrez, Baber 60B(2)96 Sharif, Mian Kamran 60B(1)19 Shinwari, Abid Shah 60B(1)1 Suhaib, Muhammad 60B(2)116 Sultana, Tasawar 60B(2)74 Tasawar, Zahida 60B(1)36 Tedela, Patrick Olugbenga 60B(3)162 Ullah, Javid 60B(1)27 Ullah, Muhammad Arshad 60B(2)116 Ullah, Rahman 60B(1)46 Ullah, Shermat 60B(1)11; 60B(2)96 Umair, Adnan 60B(2)69 Usman, Shumaila 60B(2)119 Wadood, Abdul 60B(1)19 Yaseen, Tehseen 60B(2)119 Yasmeen, Ammara 60B(2)119 Yousuf, Kamran 60B(3)141 Zahra, Naseem 60B(2)122 Zakaria, Muhammad 60B(1)27 Zunnurain 60B(2)91

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Series B: Biological Sciences Volume 60

Subject Index

Abiotic stress tolerance in Escherichia coli	60B (2)74
Accumulation of heavy metals by living and dead bacteria	60B (2)106
Agroclimatic conditions of Skardu, response of potato	60B (3)132
Antiantioxidant activity using free radical scavaning assay of potatoes	60B (2)122
Antioxidant property analysis of various food supplements	60B (3)145
Banana mushroom blended jam, development and	60B (1)11
Barley and oat meal supplemented chapaties	60B (1)19
Biochemical evaluation of Trigonella foenum graecum (Fenugreek)	60B (3)154
Biochemical profile in normal individuals, barley and oat meal	60B (1)19
Biosorbents, accumulation of heavy metals	60B (2)106
Blended jam, development and quality evaluation of	60B (1)11
Blended jam, influence of carrot pulp	60B (2)96
Buckwheat cookies supplemented with wheat flour	60B (1)27
Buffalo milk, the effect of beta cyclodextrin on	60B (2)91
Busy roads in Nigeria, vehicular traffic air pollution	60B (3)162
Carrot pulp fortified with different concentrations of apple pulp	60B (2)96
Cereals and pulses, a comparison of nutrient and	60B (2)119
Coccidiosis disease, role of herbal	60B (3)176
Coccidiosis: Present and future strategies for	60B (1)49
Comparison of direct seeded and transplanted rice	60B (2)116
Concentrations of apple pulp, influence of	60B (2)96
Control of avian coccidiosis: Present and future strategies	60B (1)49
Control of coccidiosis disease, role of herbal	60B (3)176
Development of buckwheat cookies supplemented with wheat flour	60B (1)27
DPPH radical scavenging assay, biological activities, nutritional composition	60B (2)84
Effect of physical, chemical and physiochemical treatments	60B (3)141
Escherichia coli, DOF transcription factor from rice	60B (2)74
Free radical scavenging assay of potatoes	60B (2)122
Ganoderma lucidum coffee, application of spectroscopic techniques	60B (3)145
Grass diversity in the historical Kalash valley	60B (2)63
Inorganic fertilizers, response of potato cultivars to	60B (3)132
In-vitro propagation, effect of physical, chemical and	60B (3)141
Kalash valley, grass diversity	60B (2)63
Maize cultivars and evaluation of vigour improvement	60B (2)69
Maize cultivars, nutrient priming in	60B (2)69
Medicinal plants Salvadora persica and Solanum surattense	60B (3)141
Momordica charantia seeds grown in	60B (2)84

Mutagenic effects on the growth, reproductive and	60B (3)132
Natural alternatives of therapeutics, control of avian coccidiosis	
Nutrient and dietary compositions of cereals and pulses	
Nutrient priming in different maize cultivars	
Nutritional composition and quality parameters of <i>Momordica charantia</i> seeds	
Oilseed crops, spider diversity in Central Punjab, Pakistan	
<i>Os</i> DOF18, a DOF transcription factor from rice	
Pakistan, a study on molecular diagnosis of Theileria	60B (1)36
Pakistan, compositions of cereals and pulses	
Pakistan, grass diversity in the historical Kalash valley,	60B (2)63
Pakistan, nutritional analysis and determination of	60B (2)122
Pakistan, quality parameters of Momordica charantia seeds	60B (2)84
Pakistan, spider diversity in	60B (3)168
Parameters of Praecitrullus fistulosus, mutagenic effect	 60B (3)132
Pasteurized milk in polyethylene pouch packs, photo-oxidation of	60B (1)46
PCR amplication in sheep and goat	60B (1)36
Phenolic acids, biochemical evaluation of	60B (3)154
Photo-oxidation of pasteurized milk in polyethylene pouch packs	60B (1)46
Physiochemical and sensory properties of strawberry leather	60B (1)1
Polyethylene pouch packs, photo-oxidation of	60B (1)46
Potatoes (Solanum tuberosum), determination of antioxidant activity	60B (2)122
Praecitrullus fistulosus, mutagenic effects on	60B (3)132
Quality evaluation of banana mushroom blended jam	60B (1)11
Removal of cholesterol from buffalo milk, the effect of	60A (2)91
Response of potato cultivars to organic and inorganic fertilizers	60B (3)132
Rice, •OsDOF18, a DOF transcription factor from	60B (2)74
Role of herbal immunomodulators in control of coccidiosis	60B (3)176
Salt-affected soil, rice in response to	60B (2)116
Senna occidentalis (L.), vehicular traffic air pollution	60B (3)162
Serum biochemical profile in normal individuals	60B (1)19
Sheep and goats, a study on molecular diagnosis of Theileria	60B (1)36
Spectroscopic techniques for antioxidant property analysis of	60B (3)145
Spider diversity in some common oilseed crops	60B (3)168
Strawberry leather, effect of different concentrations of	
Sucrose and honey, effect of different concentrations of	60B (1)1
The effect of beta cyclodextrin on the removal of cholesterol	60B (2)91
Theileria species infection, a study on molecular diagnosis	60B (1)36
Trigonella foenum graecum (Fenugreek), biochemical evaluation of	
Vehicular traffic air pollution as expressed by leaves	60B (3)162
Waste soil, biosorbents: isolated from	60B (2)106
Wheat flour, development of buckwheat cookies	
Zinc, comparison of direct seeded and transplanted rice	60B (2)116

Pakistan Journal of Scientific & Industrial Research (PJSIR)

Call For Papers

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research (PJSIR) is the premier research journal of Pakistan and has been publishing for the last 59 years, comprising of original research papers in the fields of Physical and Biological Sciences. Since January 2011, the Journal has been bifurcated and now published bimonthly i.e. 6 issues in a year in two series as follows:

- Series A: Physical Sciences (appearing as issues of January-February, May-June and September-October) including articles of Physics, Physical and Analytical Chemistry, Geology, Geography, Environmental Sciences, Technology) and
- Series B: Biological Sciences (appearing as issues of March-April, July-August and November-December) including articles of Agriculture, Botany, Zoology, Microbiology, Biochemistry, Biological Chemistry, Genetics, Food Sciences, Pharmaceutical Sciences, Environmental Sciences).

PJSIR is an interdisciplinary open access peer-reviewed refereed journal and complies with the international standards and ethics of scientific community.

We publish original primary research articles/Review papers related to Biological Sciences, Physical Sciences and Technology. However, we do not entertain articles of Pure Mathematics, Computer Sciences, Social/Management Sciences and Medical Sciences. You may send it via e-mail info@pjsir.org as well as through our website www.pjsir.org.

CALL FOR PAPERS

Please submit your research papers for upcoming volume 61 of PJSIR for the year 2018.

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research **PCSIR - Scientific Information Centre**

PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzman Siddiqui, Karachi - 75280, Pakistan Ph: 92-21-99261949-99261917, Fax: 92-21-99261913, E-mail: info@pjsir.org Website: www.pjsir.org

EXCHANGE FORM

We wish to receive Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research Ser. A: Phys. Sci: and/or Ser. B: Biol. Sci. in exchange of :

Name of Journal:	 	
Frequency:	 	
Subjects Covered:	 	
Institution:	 	
Address:	 	
C '		
Signature:		
Name:	 	
Designation:	 	
Date:	 	
E-mail:	 	
Fax:		
Phone:	 	

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research **PCSIR - Scientific Information Centre**

PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzman Siddiqui, Karachi - 75280, Pakistan

Ph: 92-21-99261949-99261917, Fax: 92-21-99261913, E-mail: info@pjsir.org Website: www.pjsir.org

SUBSCRIPTION FORM

I/we wish to subscribe to 'Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research' Ser. A: Phys. Sci: and/or Ser. B: Biol. Sci. The filled in proforma is being returned for compliance.

Subscriber's dat: Name: Address:	
E-mail: Fax: Phone:	
Signature: Order Membershij	No. (if any):
Tick the relevant box:	Send invoice Bill later on Cheque forenclosed
_	local: Rs. $2500/=$ per volume; Rs. $425/=$ per copy foreign: US\$ $450/=$ per volume; US\$ $75/=$ per copy

Foreign: US450/ = per volume; US75/ = per copy

Payment should be made through cross cheque in favour of PCSIR NIDA 16-3 NBP and mailed to the Director PCSIR -Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan.

INSTRUCTIONS TO AUTHORS

Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research, Series A: Physical Sciences and Series B: Biological Sciences publish original researches as full research papers, short communications and reviews. Articles submitted to other journals for publication are not accepted. All manuscripts are evaluated by subject experts of advanced countries. However, authenticity of the contents remains the sole responsibility of the author/s. The Journal reserves the rights to edit, wherever considered necessary.

Manuscripts should be submitted with a covering letter, giving unabbreviated names and addresses of all the authors, indicating the corresponding author and certifying that the paper has neither been, nor will be sent elsewhere for publication.

Author/s may submit electronic copies in MS Word via e-mail or through our website. The manuscript should contain, in order, Running Title (not more than 60 characters), Title of the article, full names, addresses, telephone numbers, fax numbers, e-mail addresses of all the Authors, Abstract (not more than 150 words), three to six Keywords, Introduction, Materials and Methods, Results and Discussion, Acknowledgement (if applicable), References, Tables and Illustrations. All illustrations should be of good quality with legible captions. In case of coloured figures, 50% printing expenses would have to be borne by the authors.IUPAC rules for units and their abbreviations should be used. Plagiarism Report of the submitted paper must be attached and similarity index should be < = 19%.

References should be verifiable and cited in the text by the last name of the author (both authors if only two, the first author and *et al* when more than two) followed by the year, **in descending chronological order.** All references in the bibliography should be listed in alphabetical order of the authors' last names followed by date of publication and other complete details with full names of Journals as given below. Anonymous (Anon) references are not accepted.

Papers of Journals

In "Text"

Park (2005), Aksu and Kabasakal (2004) and Evans *et al.* (2000) (Park, 2005; Aksu and Kabasakal, 2004; Evans *et al.*, 2000)

In "References"

Evans, W.J., Johnson, M.A., Fujimoto, Cy. H., Greaves, J. 2000. Utility of electrospray mass spectrometry for the characterization of air-sensitive organolan-thanides and related species. *Organometallics*, **19:** 4258-4265.

Books

Cinar, A., Parulekar, S.J., Undey, C., Birol, G. 2003. Batch Fermentation: Modeling, Monitoring, and Control, 250 pp. Marcel Dekker Inc., New York, USA.

Chapters in Edited Books

Newby, P.J., Johnson, B. 2003. Overview of alternative rapid microbiological techniques. In: *Rapid Microbiological Methods in the Pharmaceutical Industry*, M.C. Easter (ed.), vol. **1**, pp. 41-59, 1st edition, Interpharm/CRC, Boca Raton, Florida, USA.

Papers in Proceedings

Marceau, J. 2000. Innovation systems in building and construction and the housing industry in Australia. In:*Proceedings of Asia-Pacific Science and Technology Management Seminar on National Innovation Systems* pp. 129-156, Japan Int. Sci. Technol. Exchange Centre, Saitama, Japan.

Reports

SIĈ-PCSIR. 2002. Biannual Report, 2000-2001; 2001-2002, Scientific Information Centre, Pakistan Council of Scientific and Industrial Research, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Shahrah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi, Pakistan.

Thesis

Saeed, A. 2005. Comparative Studies on the Biosorption of Heavy Metals by Immobilized Microalgal Cultures, Suspended Biomass and Agrowastes.

Ph.D. Thesis, 248 pp., University of the Punjab, Lahore, Pakistan.

Patents

Young, D.M. 2000. Thermostable Proteolytic Enzymes and Uses Thereof in Peptide and Protein Synthesis, US Patent No. 6,143,517, 7th November, 2000.

Data Set from a Database (information should be retrievable through the input)

Deming, D.; Dynarski, S. 2008. The lengthening of childhood (NBER Paper 14124) Cambridge, MA: National Bureau of Economic Research. Retrieved July 21, 2008 from http:// www.nber.org/papers/w14124) DOI No.....

The manuscripts should be addressed to: The Executive Editor, Pakistan Journal of Scientific and Industrial Research, Scientific Information Centre, PCSIR Laboratories Campus, Sharah-e-Dr. Salimuzzaman Siddiqui, Karachi-75280, Pakistan.

Phone: (92-21)-99261914, 16, 17, 99261949, **Fax:** (92-21) 99261913

Web: http://www.pjsir.org; E-mail: info@pjsir.org